
 

From: Democratic Services Unit – any further information may be obtained from the reporting 
officer or from Carolyn Eaton, Principal Democratic Services Officer, 0161 342 3050 or 
carolyn.eaton@tameside.gov.uk, to whom any apologies for absence should be notified. 

 

SPEAKERS PANEL (LIQUOR LICENSING) 
 

Day: Thursday 
Date: 23 July 2020 
Time: 10.00 am 
Place: Zoom Meeting 

 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page 
No 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive any declarations of interest.  

3   MINUTES  1 - 4 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Speakers Panel Liquor Licensing 
on the 25 February 2020. 

 

4   APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE – TOP END 
BAR, 132-134 STAMFORD STREET CENTRAL, ASHTON-UNDER-LYNE  
OL6 6AD  

5 - 70 

 To consider the application for a review of a Premises Licence.  

5   APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE - THE BILLY 
GOAT, 71 STAMFORD STREET, MOSSLEY.  OL5 0JS  

71 - 162 

 To consider the application for a review of a Premises Licence.  

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

SPEAKERS PANEL (LIQUOR LICENSING) 
 

25 February 2020 
 

Commenced:10:00am Terminated: 1:10pm 

Present: Councillors Sweeton (Chair), Bowden (Deputy Chair) and Cartey 

In Attendance: Mike Robinson Licensing Manager 
 Margaret Warner Legal Representative 
 Ian Pascoe Regulatory Compliance Officer 
 James Mallion 

PC Martin Thorley 
Anthony Sullivan 
 
Michael Daly 
John Gibson 
Zoe Quinn 

Consultant Public Health 
Greater Manchester Police 
Business Development Manager, Admiral 
Taverns 
Designated Premises Supervisor 
Tenant 
Tenant 

 
 
18.  
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 
19. MINUTES 
 
The Minutes of the proceedings of the previous meeting held on 13 January 2020, having been 
circulated were signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 
 
20. 
 

APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE – ROYAL OAK, 23 
NOOK LANE, ASHTON-UNDER-LYNE, LANCS.  OL6 9HN 

 
Consideration was given to an application for a review of premises licence at the Royal Oak Public 
House, 23 Nook Lane, Ashton-under-Lyne.  OL6 9HN.   
 
The Regulatory Services Manager outlined the procedure and the steps which could be utilised by 
the Speakers Panel (Liquor Licensing) in determining the application, the options available to the 
Panel were as set out in Section 18(4) of the Licensing Act 2003, namely: 

(a) To modify the conditions of the licence 
(b) To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence 
(c) To remove the designated premises supervisor 
(d) To revoke the licence 

 
The Regulatory Services Manager informed the Panel that the Royal Oak, 23 Nook Lane, Ashton-
under-Lyne, had held a premises licence with Tameside MBC since 24 November 2005.  The 
premises licence holder was Admiral Taverns and the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) was, 
at the time of the incidents referred to in the report, Bernadette Corcoran, who had been in place at 
the premises since 9 April 2019.  
 
It was reported that, since May 2019, the Council’s Regulatory Services Department had received 4 
complaints from members of the public regarding disorder and anti-social behaviour associated with 
the premises. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 
 

 
 

On 25 June 2019 a compliance visit was conducted at the premises following receipt of a complaint 
that licensable activities were being carried on beyond the authorised hours and that drugs were 
being openly used within the premises.  At the time of the visit the DPS was unable to access the 
CCTV footage, concerns were raised with Admiral Taverns regarding the management of the 
premises and a further visit was arranged with Admiral Taverns Business Development Manager, 
Mr Sullivan. 
 
On 10 July 2019, Licensing Officers met with you at the premises to discuss the complaint and 
review the CCTV footage.  Limited footage was provided which did not cover the times requested, 
however the footage supplied was sufficient to confirm that the sale of alcohol was taking place after 
licensable hours.  Further, customers were also seen to be dealing drugs and smoking inside the 
premises. 
 
Licensing officers worked with Admiral Taverns to agree a list of conditions to be attached to the 
premises licence in an attempt to ensure that the licensing objectives were promoted.  At this time 
the Licensing officers reiterated their concerns that the management of the premises were failing to 
address the issues identified at the premises.  A minor variation application to attach to the agreed 
conditions was submitted on 13 August 2019.  Since the premises licence was amended there had 
been further breaches of the licence, and the DPS had repeatedly failed to co-operate with the 
authorities following incidents. 
 
On 28 November 2019, a meeting was arranged with the Licensing Manager, Police Licensing 
Officer, Regulatory Compliance Officer and Mr Sullivan to discuss the incidents.  Mr Sullivan was 
informed that both the Police and Licensing department had lost faith in the ability of the DPS to 
effectively manage the premises and promote the licensing objectives.  The Police Licensing officer 
advised Mr Sullivan that if the DPS was not removed from the premises, then an application to 
review the premises licence would be submitted to the Licensing department. 
 
It was explained that further incidents had taken place over the Christmas and New Year period 
demonstrating that the current DPS had lost control of the premises.  Despite assurances from the 
premises licence holder, no application was received to change the Designated Premises 
Supervisor.  As such an application to review the premises licence was submitted to the Licensing 
Authority by Greater Manchester Police on 6 January 2020. 
 
PC Thorley, Greater Manchester Police, then addressed the Panel and gave details of incidents 
reported from June 2019 onwards involving allegations of alcohol being served outside of licensable 
hours, misuse of drugs on the premises and excessive noise from the premise.  PC Thorley also 
displayed CCTV footage from cameras inside and outside of the Royal Oak Public House and stills 
from an overt public facing TMBC camera situated at Hurst Cross.  The footage/stills related to 
incidents occurring on: 10 October 2019, 11 October 2019, 18 October 2019, 26 December 2019, 1 
January 2020, 1 February 2020 and demonstrated incidents of anti-social behaviour and public 
disorder, both inside and outside of the premises. 
 
PC Thorley made reference to a meeting convened on 24 January 2020 with himself, Mr Robinson, 
Mr Pascoe and Mr Sullivan, where incidents as detailed above, were discussed.  During this 
meeting PC Thorley recommended that Licensing Conditions be volunteered to the Licence of The 
Royal Oak by the Premise Licence Holder.  This request was proposed in order for the premises to 
comply with the requirement of the Licensing Act 2003 and to ensure promotion of the licensing 
objectives for prevention of crime and disorder and public safety.  It was suggested that the 
appropriate and proportionate way to deal with these incidents that had occurred was the 
modification of conditions of the licence and implementation of the following Licensing Conditions: 

(i) The Implementation of SIA ‘Approved’ doorstaff working Friday – Saturday between 2100 
hrs – ½ hour after closing time.  One member of doorstaff within these times and for any 
sporting event being shown on the premises. 

(ii) CCTV would be improved covering each entry and exit point of the premises and the car 
park; 

(iii) Smoking to only be permitted in the car park / beer garden; and 

Page 2



 
 

 
 

(iv) No glass to be taken beyond the front entrance to the premises. 
(v) Sale of alcohol to conclude at midnight – Sunday – Thursday; 0100 hrs Friday – Saturday 

 
He added that the recommended Licensing Conditions in relation to doorstaff were dismissed by Mr 
Sullivan as unachievable. 
 
PC Thorley expressed concerns that, on occasions when it was clear that the DPS, her partner and 
staff were aware of assault occurring both on and off the premises that there were no calls made to 
Police to report such matters.  No attempt was made to prevent patrons walking freely to and from 
the premises in possession of alcoholic drinks and glasses.  He further expressed concerns in 
respect of the failure of the DPS to provide CCTV footage when requested, in a timely way, in 
accordance with the terms of the licence. 
 
Ian Pascoe, Regulatory Compliance Officer, then addressed the Panel and gave details of a review 
of the premises licence, which referenced a compliance visit to the premises on 25 June 2019 
following the receipt of complaints of drinking beyond the licensable hours, drug taking inside the 
premises and noise.  There were also issues regarding non-compliance in respect of toilet checks, 
refusals book and staff training.  Further details were also given of subsequent incidents of disorder 
captured CCTV cameras as detailed above in PC Thorley’s address to the Panel. 
 
James Mallion, Consultant Public Health, also addressed the Panel and gave information/data in 
respect alcohol related harm in the OL6 9HN area and A&E attendances in the vicinity of the 
premises.  . Mr Mallion informed Members of the Panel that the locality already had the 34th highest 
degree of existing alcohol related harm in the Borough, which fell in the top quartile.  The rank for 
weekend A&E attendances (from midnight to 5am), was the 3rd highest in the borough and more 
than double the Tameside average and the rank for all alcohol-specific hospital admissions in this 
area was 6th highest in the borough and four times higher than the Tameside average.  The overall 
rate of alcohol-related crime in this area was also high and ranked 9th highest in the borough.  It was 
noted that this was general information/data for the locality and did not relate specifically to the 
Royal Oak Public House. 
 
Mr Robinson, Regulatory Services Manager, then read out a statement from a member of the 
public, who did not wish to be identified or attend the meeting.  The statement expressed concerns 
in respect of drugs, fighting, bottles being thrown, urinating outside the premise and noise levels, in 
relation to the Royal Oak Public House. 
 
Mr Sullivan then addressed the Panel on behalf of Admiral Taverns and responded to the issues 
raised in the report and by PC Thorley.  Following a recruitment process, Mr Sullivan advised that a 
new DPS had been appointed and trading had commenced on 19 February with a new DPS and 
new tenants.  He added that it was the intention for one of the new tenants to take over as DPS as 
soon as the certificate of completion of the relevant qualification had been received.  Mr Sullivan 
explained that discussions had taken place with the new tenants and there were plans to improve 
the appearance of the premises, including; refresh painting, putting a barrier on the car park, 
improving external lighting, fencing to be erected around the smoking area and ensuring that CCTV 
covered the whole perimeter of the building.  It was planned that this schedule of works would 
commence when the weather conditions improved. 
 
All parties were then afforded the opportunity to ask questions in relation to the representations 
made. 
 
All parties were invited to provide a brief statement in summary. 
 
Members of the Panel carefully considered the written report, representations and questions and 
answers during the hearing in addition to all the information provided.  The Panel took very seriously 
the concerns raised by the Licensing Authority, Greater Manchester Police and the Public Health 
Consultant.  They were, however, pleased to learn that the DPS had been replaced and new 
tenants were in situ. 

Page 3



 
 

 
 

The Panel were of the view that, given the serious nature of the incidents detailed and viewed at the 
hearing that a short period of suspension was required in order to allow time for the new DPS and 
tenants to carry out the improvements/enhancements to the building/car park/CCTV, to ensure the 
promotion of the licensing objectives for the prevention of crime and disorder and public safety. 
 
The Panel further directed that additional conditions should be applied to the licence, and it was: 
 
RESOLVED 
(i) To suspend the premise licence for the Royal Oak Public House for a period of 1 

month, during which time a program of works be carried out, to include: refresh 
painting, erecting a barrier on the car park, improving external lighting, fencing around 
the smoking area and ensuring that CCTV covers all external areas of the premises, 
including the car park and smoking area. 

(ii) Upon re-opening of the premises, modify the conditions of the premise licence as 
follows: 

 That opening hours be modified as follows: 
Sunday – Thursday – 12 noon to 0030 hrs (all licensable activities to cease at 
0000hrs) 
Friday and Saturday – 12 noon to 0100 hrs (all licensable activities to cease at 
0030 hrs) 

 A minimum of two SIA approved doorstaff on Friday and Saturday evenings and 
for any sporting event to be shown on the premises, from 2100 hrs until ½ hr after 
closing; 

 The removal of all non-standard timings from the licence; and 

 No glass or alcohol to be taken beyond the front entrance of the premises. 
(iii) Review to be undertaken 6 months after re-opening. 

Page 4



 

 

Report to:  SPEAKERS PANEL (LIQUOR LICENSING) 

Date: 23 July 2020 

Reporting Officer: Emma Varnam – Assistant Director, Operations & 
Neighbourhoods  

Subject: APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE – 
TOP END BAR, 132-134 STAMFORD STREET CENTRAL, 
ASHTON-UNDER-LYNE, OL6 6AD 

Report Summary: Members are requested to determine the application 

Recommendations: Having regard to the application and the relevant representations, 
Members are invited to take such steps (if any) as it considers 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  The 
steps available are: 

a) Modify the conditions of the licence 

b) Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence 

c) Remove the designated premises supervisor 

d) Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months 

e) Revoke the licence 

Corporate Plan: Living Well – Improve satisfaction with local community 

Policy Implications: Members are provided with policy guidelines to assist in the 
decision making process. 

Financial Implications: 
(Authorised by the 
statutory Section 151 
Officer & Chief Finance 
Officer) 

There are limited financial implications for the Council, as detailed 
in the report, however, any legal challenge to a policy decision 
may potentially incur costs.  

Legal Implications: 
(Authorised by the 
Borough Solicitor) 

Any decision to revoke/suspend a licence or impose amendments 
or conditions to a licence can be challenged by way of appeal (in 
the first instance) to the local Magistrates Court. 

Risk Management: Failure to give full consideration to the determination of licensing 
issues has the potential to impact on public safety. 

Access to Information: The author of the report is Sharon Smith – Head of Public 
Protection 

Background Information: The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by 
contacting Sharon Smith 

Telephone: 0161 342 4122 

e-mail: sharon.smith@tameside.gov.uk 

 

 

 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Section 51(1) of the Licensing Act 2003 outlines the procedure whereby a responsible 

authority may apply to the Licensing Authority for a review of a premises licence. 
 
1.2 Section 52(3) of the Licensing Act 2003 states that the Authority must, having regard to the 

application and any relevant representations, take such of the steps mentioned in 
subsection (4) (if any) as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. 

 
 
2. REPORT 
 
2.1 Top End Bar has held a premises licence since 26 August 2008.  Anita Mistry Jones has 

been the premises licence holder since 10 May 2019 and Designated Premises Supervisor 
since 28 April 2015.  A copy of the premises licence is attached at Appendix 1. 

 
2.2 On 20 March 2020, the Prime Minister's announced that all pubs bars, restaurants, and 

other specified premises, must close down in an effort to suppress the coronavirus 
outbreak. 

 
2.3 The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Business Closure) (England) Regulations 2020, came 

into force at 14:00 hours on 21 March 2020. These regulations provided the Council with 
the necessary enforcement powers to ensure the closure of the specified premises.  

 
2.4 Part 2 of the Regulations state; 
 
 Requirement to close premises and businesses during the emergency 

2.—(1) A person who is responsible for carrying on a business which is listed in Part 1 of 
the Schedule must—  

(a) during the relevant period— 
(i)close any premises, or part of the premises, in which food or drink are sold for 
consumption on those premises, and 
(ii)cease selling food or drink for consumption on its premises;  

 
2.5 On 3 April 2020, whilst carrying out checks that licensed premises were complying with the 

regulations, Greater Manchester Police and the Council’s Licensing Department visited Top 
End Bar.  At the time of the visit the brother of the premises licence holder, Sanjay Mistry, 
was present at the premises in the company of two members of the public.  

 
2.6 The CCTV was subsequently reviewed and shows that the premises were open and 

alcohol was being consumed, a direct breach of The Health Protection (Coronavirus, 
Business Closure) (England) Regulations 2020. 

 
2.7 Sanjay Mistry jointly manages Top End Bar and is a Director of Top End Bar (Stamford St) 

Ltd.  In October 2013, Mr Mistry was convicted of smuggling non-duty paid wine, vodka and 
tobacco.  He was sentenced to 27 months imprisonment for the offence.  

 
2.8 On 16 June 2020, Mike Robinson, on behalf of the Licensing Authority submitted an 

application to review the premises licence.  The review was served on the grounds that the 
licensing objectives, namely Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Public Safety and 
Prevention of Public Nuisance, had been seriously undermined.  A copy of the application 
is attached at Appendix 2 

 
 
 
3. REPRESENTATIONS & EVIDENCE SUBMITTED 

Page 6



 

 

 
3.1 In addition to the application to review the premises licence, a supporting statement has 

been received from Mike Robinson on behalf of the Licensing Authority.  This statement is 
attached at Appendix 3. 

 
3.2 A representation has been received from Martin Thorley, Police Licensing Officer on behalf 

of Greater Manchester Police.  This representation is attached at Appendix 4.  
 
3.3 A representation has been received from James Mallion, Consultant Public Health on 

behalf of Public Health.  This representation is attached at Appendix 5. 
 
3.4 The Licensing Department received 11 emails from members of the public in support of the 

premises.  These letters are attached at Appendix 6. 
 
 
4. HOME OFFICE GUIDANCE 
 
4.1 The current guidance issued by the Home Office under section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003 deals with the Powers of a Licensing Authority on the determination of a review, with 
particular attention being drawn to section 11.19, where a Licensing Authority considers 
action under its statutory powers: 
 
11.19  Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers is 
appropriate, it may take any of the following steps: 
• modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new conditions or 
any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by reducing the hours of 
opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular times; 
• exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude 
the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within the 
incidental live and recorded music exemption); 
• remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider that the 
problems are the result of poor management; 
• suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
• revoke the licence. 

 
 
5. CONCLUSION AND OPTIONS FOR THE PANEL 
 
5.1 Panel are requested to consider the evidence and decide what (if any) steps to take as it 

considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  The options available to 
the Panel are set out at the front of the report.  

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
THIS LICENCE IS ISSUED BY 

 
 

Tameside MBC 
Licensing Department 

Tame Street Depot 
Tame Street 
Stalybridge 

Tameside 
SK15 1ST 

web: www.tameside.gov.uk 
Tel: 0161 342 4262 

 

Part 1 – Premises Details 

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES,  OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION 

PREMISES Top End Bar TELEPHONE: 07815770538 

ADDRESS 
 
132 - 134 Stamford Street Central, Ashton-Under-Lyne, Tameside, OL6 6AD 
 

 
WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES: 

Not applicable 

 

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE: 
 
E 
F 
J 
N 
 

 
 -   Performance Of Live Music; 
 -   Playing Of Recorded Music; 
 -   Sale by retail of alcohol; 
 -   Provision of Regulated Entertainment; 
 

 
THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES: 

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Times 

 E  -  Performance Of Live Music (Indoors) 

  Friday - Saturday 21:00  - 12:00 
 F  -  Playing Of Recorded Music (Indoors) 

  Monday - Sunday 10:00  - 12:00 
 J  -  Sale by retail of alcohol (Indoors) 

  Monday - Sunday 10:00  - 00:30 
 N  -  Provision of Regulated Entertainment (Indoors) 

  Monday - Sunday 10:00  - 12:00 
 

 
THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES: 

Description Times 

 

Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 
 

 

10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 

 

 

00:30 
00:30 
00:30 
00:30 
00:30 
00:30 
00:30 
 

 
Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and /or off supplies: 
  
Alcohol is supplied for consumption ON the Premises OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES: 

 
  

Premises Licence 
Licensing Act 2003 

 PL0723 

 

Premises Licence 
Licensing Act 2003 

 PL0723 

 

APPENDIX 1 

Page 9



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises 
licence: 

Ms Anita Mistry Jones 
49 Bowness Road, Ashton-Under-Lyne, Tameside, OL7 9HH,  

Tel: 07815770538 
Email:  

 
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable) 

Ms Anita Mistry Jones 
49 Bowness Road, Ashton-Under-Lyne, Tameside, OL7 9HH,  

Business Reg No:  

 
Name address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence 
authorises the supply of alcohol: 

 
Mrs Anita Mistry - Jones 
49 Bowness Road, Ashton-Under-Lyne, Tameside, OL7 9HH,  

Tel: 0161 342 24520161 330 
9207 

 
Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises 
supervisor (where the premises authorises for the supply of alcohol): 

 
Licence Number: PA2039 
Licensing Authority Issued by: Tameside  
 
 
SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE ISSUING LICENCE AUTHORITY 

  
  

 Head of Public Protection - Operations & Neighbourhoods   

 
  

Page 10



 

ANNEXES 

Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions 
 
 

1 On & Off Licence Premises  
   

All supplies of alcohol  
   

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence-  
   

(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or  
   

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his personal licence is 
suspended.  

   
2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a personal 
licence.  

   
Exhibition of films  

   
1. Where a premises licence authorises the exhibition of films, the licence must include a condition requiring the 
admission of children to the exhibition of any film to be restricted in accordance with this section.  

   
2. Where the film classification body is specified in the licence, unless subsection (3)(b) applies, admission of children 
must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation by that body.  

   
3. Where:  

   
(a) The film classification body is not specified in the licence, or   

   
(b) The relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence that this subsection applies to the film in 
question; admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that licensing 
authority.  

   
4. In this section "children" means any person aged under 18; and "film classification body" means the person or persons 
designated as the authority under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 (c39) (authority to determine suitability of 
video works for classification).  

   
Door supervision  

   
1. Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more individuals must be at the premises 
to carry out a security activity, each such individual must:  

   
(a) Be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security Industry Act 2001; or  

   
(b) Be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the Act.  

   
2. But nothing in subsection 1 requires such a condition to be imposed:  

   
(a) in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry Act 2001 (c12) 
(premises with premises licences authorising plays or films); or  

   
(b) in respect of premises in relation to:  

   
(i) Any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises being used exclusively by club with 
club premises certificate, under a temporary event notice authorising films or under a gaming licence, or  

   
(ii) Any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed by regulations under that Act.  

   
3. For the purposes of this section:  

   
(a) "security activity" means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule applies, and, which is licensable 
conduct for the purposes of that Act,  

   
(b) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an  occasion) applies as it applies in relation to 

Page 11



 

paragraph 8 of that Schedule.  
   

Age verification policy  
   

1. The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification policy is adopted 
in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.  

   
2. The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the 
premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.  

   
3. The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or such older 
age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 
photograph, date of birth and either—  

   
(a) a holographic mark, or  

         
(b) an ultraviolet feature.  

   
Irresponsible drinks promotions  

   
1. The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any 
irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or 
more of the following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or 
supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises—  

   
(a) Games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage, individuals to-  

   
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the 
cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or  

   
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);  

   
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a 
group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective;  

   
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase and 
consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a 
licensing objective;  

   
(d) Selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises 
which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner.  

   
(e) The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one person into the mouth of another 
(other than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a disability).  

   
2. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where it is 
reasonably available.  

   
Alcoholic drink measures  

   
The responsible person must ensure that—  

   
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic 
drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is 
available to customers in the following measures-  

   
(i) beer or cider: ½ pint;  
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and  
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and  

   
(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to customers on the 
premises; and  
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is 
made aware that these measures are available.  Page 12



 

   
Minimum Cost of Alcohol  

   
A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises for a price which 
is less than the permitted price.  
For the purposes of the condition   
(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;  
(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula-  
P = D + (D x V)  
where-  
(i) P is the permitted price,  
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of the sale or 
supply of the alcohol, and  
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were charged on the 
date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;  
(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence-  
(i) the holder of the premises licence,  
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or  
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;  
(d) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises certificate, any 
member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the 
supply in question; and   
(e) "valued added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994.  
Where the permitted price given by the calculation is not a whole number of pennies, the price given by that calculation 
shall be taken to be the price rounded up to the nearest penny. 

 

Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 
 
 

 

 General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d, e): 
 

To comply with pub/club watch scheme.  
To work alongside the police to reduce anti-social behaviour.  
Strict drugs policy.  
Strict dress code.  
Strict door policy.  
To follow and abide by the Challenge 25 policy 
 
 The prevention of crime and disorder: 

 
Door Supervisors will monitor the bar at all times.  Any persons causing trouble to be removed or who are likely to cause 
trouble.  The number of people smoking outside will be monitored.  The toilets will be checked regularly.  

   
Conditions added following a minor variation application 28th October 2013 as agreed with Greater Manchester Police.
  

   
SIA Registered Door Staff to provide a policy document relating to the use of SIA registered door staff at the premises.
  

   
A minimum of 2 SIA registered door staff to be in place on Friday, Saturday and Sunday from 22:00 hours to close as 
stipulated in the trading hours.  

   
Door staff to be on duty on all "derby days" (Manchester United v Manchester City) at least one hour prior to allotted kick 
off time and at least one hour after the football match conclusion.  

   
The document is to be contained in the Due diligence Folder on the premises and to be made available to the police or 
authorised member of the licensing authority on request. 

 
Public safety 

 
Given to any persons engaging in Anti-social behaviour.  Doors supervisors having the right search anyone. 
 
The prevention of public nuisance: 

 
Condition added following representation from a responsible authority.  Page 13



 

   
Noise generated by regulated entertainment shall be inaudible at the nearest noise sensitive location. A noise limiting 
device shall be installed, fitted and maintained in such a manner as to control all sources of amplified music at the 
premises. The noise limiting device shall be set and maintained at a level to be agreed with Tameside MBC. The 
doors/windows at Top End Bar, 132 - 134 Stamford Street, Ashton-under-Lyne shall be fitted with double/secondary 
glazing in order to improve the sound attenuation of the premises. 

 
The protection of children from harm; 
None given 
 
1. Door Staff Log  

   
A Door Supervisor Log shall be correctly maintained at the premises.   
This will include the following details:  
i. The door staff names, dates of birth and home addresses;  
ii. Full details, name, address and contact number of employment agency used And for each individual period of trading: 
iii. The name of the individual member of door staff  
iv .His/her Security Industry Authority licence number  
v. The time and date he/she starts and finishes duty  
vi. The time of any breaks taken whilst on duty  
vii. Each entry shall be signed by the door supervisor, DPS or nominated person   

   
2. CCTV  

   
(a) A tamper-proof digital colour CCTV system must be installed and maintained at the premises to the satisfaction of 
Greater Manchester Police.  

   
(b) The system must run and record continuously for 24 hours a day, 7 days per week and recorded footage must be 
stored for a minimum of 31 days.  

   
(c) The system must provide a clear head and shoulders view to an evidential quality on every entry/exit route and within 
any other vulnerable areas as identified by Greater Manchester Police.  

   
(d) Recorded footage must be provided to a representative of any responsible authority on request. Such footage must 
be provided in an immediately viewable format and must include any software etc. which is required to view the footage. 
Any discs, portable drives or other storage media onto which footage is transferred must be provided by the premises 
and sufficient stock of such storage media must be kept on the premises at all times.  

   
(e) A member of staff who is trained to operate the system and supply footage must be present at the premises at all 
times when licensable activities are taking place.  

   
(f) The Designated Premises Supervisor must ensure that the CCTV system is checked at least once every week by a 
suitably trained member of staff. This check must include the operation of the cameras, the recording facilities, the 
facilities for providing footage and the accuracy of the time & date. A written record of these checks must be kept, 
including a signature of the person carrying out the check. This written record must be kept on the premises at all times 
and made available to a representative of any responsible authority on request.  

   
(g) Suitable signage informing customers that a CCTV system is in operation must be placed in prominent positions 
within the premises, including information on the Data Protection Act and the Human Rights Act.  

    
Condition added following representation from Greater Manchester Police.   
The management agree to be an active member of the local Pub & Club Watch Scheme and subscribe to and support 
local crime reduction initiatives.   

     
3. Prevention Strategy  

    
Premises Management operate a zero tolerance to all aspects of drugs use and the people using them.  

   
We have a duty of care to any patrons in the premise who maybe under the influence of a substance. Should any person 
be found on the premise, they will be asked to leave, with assurance they are either in the company of a responsible 
person, i.e. a friend; or they will be placed in a taxi to their home address. Should a patron require medical attention, the 
duty first aider will assist them in the first instance until a Paramedic arrives.   

     
4. Known Offenders   

   
All people who are known to be drug users or dealers will be barred from the premise. These barring will either come Page 14



 

from the local pub watch Scheme or an in house bar.   
Anyone who is found to be using/dealing on the premise will be automatically barred from the premise and will also be 
put forward to the pub watch Scheme for a town centre banning order.   
All members of staff and door staff will have access to pictures of known offenders and will inform management 
immediately if an offender is in the premises.   

   
5. Persons  

    
Staff will conduct searches of any person entering the establishment who they suspect to be carrying or using drugs. 
These searches will be conducted at the front door in the view of the operating CCTV. Clothing and bags will be 
searched by a member of the same sex. Anyone found already in the premises suspected of using drugs will be 
searched in a separate location with CCTV and a minimum of 2 staff members present.   
If a person is found with drugs on their person the Police will be contacted immediately, with the person being held until 
the arrival of the police.   
Records of all searches will be available for the authorities and will be kept for a minimum of 6 months.  
   
6. Toilet Checks  

    
Toilet checks should be conducted frequently when licensable activities are taking place. These checks will be recorded 
and kept on the premises for a minimum of 31 days and will be available for inspection at any time.   

     
7. Drugs Records  

    
Any drugs paraphernalia found, will be given to a member of management who will record the find in the book including 
date/time/location/finder description/ref number. The items will then be placed in a sealed police drugs bag and stored in 
a locked container until the police collect.  

     
8. Posters/Information  

   
Posters and leaflets informing patrons about drug use and the dangers will be placed around the premises. These 
locations will include the toilets and the main reception area.   

    
9. Training  

    
Staff will receive in house training on the procedures for when drugs paraphernalia is found, or if they have suspicion on 
a patron under the influence of a substance.   
The first-aider for the premises will have training with regard to how to treat patrons with possible drugs use 
symptoms.All staff training records including those in the due diligence pack will be updated with the training received.
  

   
10. Other Measures  

    
Under the mandatory requirements of the premises licence free tap water will be made available for all patrons at all 
times the premises are open. 
 

 

Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
 

 
ANNEX 4 – AUTHORISED PLANS 
 
As attached 

 
  

Page 15



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS LICENCE IS ISSUED BY 

 
 

Tameside MBC 
Licensing Department 

Tame Street Depot 
Tame Street 
Stalybridge 

Tameside 
SK15 1ST 

web: www.tameside.gov.uk 
Tel: 0161 342 4262 

 

Part 1 – Premises Details 

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES,  OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION 

PREMISES Top End Bar TELEPHONE: 07815770538 

ADDRESS 
 
132 - 134 Stamford Street Central, Ashton-Under-Lyne, Tameside, OL6 6AD 
 

 
WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES: 

Not applicable 

 
LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE: 
 

E 
F 
J 
N 
 

 

 -   Performance Of Live Music; 
 -   Playing Of Recorded Music; 
 -   Sale by retail of alcohol; 
 -   Provision of Regulated Entertainment; 
 

 
THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES: 

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Times 

 

 E  -  Performance Of Live Music (Indoors) 

  Friday - Saturday 21:00  - 12:00 
 F  -  Playing Of Recorded Music (Indoors) 

  Monday - Sunday 10:00  - 12:00 
 J  -  Sale by retail of alcohol (Indoors) 

  Monday - Sunday 10:00  - 00:30 
 N  -  Provision of Regulated Entertainment (Indoors) 

  Monday - Sunday 10:00  - 12:00 
 

 
THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES: 

Description Times 

 

Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 
 

 

10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 

 

 

00:30 
00:30 
00:30 
00:30 
00:30 
00:30 
00:30 
 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and /or off supplies: 

 Alcohol is supplied for consumption ON the Premises 

 
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises licence: 

Ms Anita Mistry Jones 
49 Bowness Road, Ashton-Under-Lyne, Tameside, OL7 9HH,  

Tel: 07815770538 
Email:  

Premises Licence Summary 
Licensing Act 2003 

 PL0723 

 

Page 16



 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable): 

Ms Anita Mistry Jones 
49 Bowness Road, Ashton-Under-Lyne, Tameside, OL7 9HH,  

Business Reg No:  

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol: 

 
Mrs Anita Mistry - Jones 
49 Bowness Road, Ashton-Under-Lyne, Tameside, OL7 9HH,  

Tel: 0161 342 24520161 330 9207 

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited: 

Access to the premises by children is restricted  

 
SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE ISSUING LICENCE AUTHORITY 

  
 

 Head of Public Protection - Operations & Neighbourhoods  

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 
Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council 

 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the 

Licensing Act 2003 

 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure 

that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. 

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  

 

I Mike Robinson, Regulatory Services Manager (Licensing), Tameside MBC 

  (Insert name of applicant) 

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the review of a club 

premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in 

Part 1 below (delete as applicable) 

 

Part 1 – Premises or club premises details   

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 
Top End Bar 

132 – 134 Stamford Street Central 

Ashton-under-Lyne 

OL6 6AD 

Post town   Ashton-under-Lyne Post code (if known)  OL6 6AD 

 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known) 

Ms Anita Mistry Jones 

 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)  

PL0723 

 

 

Part 2 - Applicant details  

 
I am 

 
 

Please tick  yes 

 

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible  

authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A)  

or (B) below) 

  

 

 

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)  X 

 

Page 19



3) a member of the club to which this application relates  

(please complete (A) below) 

    

 

 

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable) 

 
Please tick  yes 

 

Mr  Mrs  Miss  Ms  Other title       

 (for example, Rev) 

 

Surname  First names 

             

 
 Please tick  yes 

I am 18 years old or over 

 

 

 

Current postal  

address if  

different from 

premises 

address 

      

 
Post town       Post Code       

 
Daytime contact telephone number       

 
E-mail address 

(optional)  

      

 

 

(B)  DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 

 
Name and address 

      

Telephone number (if any) 

      

E-mail address (optional)  

      

 

Page 20



 

 (C)  DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT 

 

 Name and address 

Mr M Robinson 

Regulatory Services Manager (Licensing) 

Regulatory Services 

Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council 

Tame St Depot  

Tame St 

Stalybridge 

SK15 1ST 

Telephone number (if any) 

0161 342 4262 

E-mail address (optional)  

mike.robinson@tameside.gov.uk 

  

 

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 

 

 Please tick one or more boxes  

1) the prevention of crime and disorder X 

2) public safety X 

3) the prevention of public nuisance X 
4) the protection of children from harm  
 

Page 21



Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2) 

On 20 March 2020, the government via a Prime Ministerial address to the nation and in response 

to the Coronavirus pandemic, gave a direction for all pubs, bars and restaurants to close and not to 

reopen until directed to do so.  

 

The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Business Closure) (England) Regulations 2020, came into 

force on 21 March 2020.  

 

These Regulations require the closure of specified businesses – including restaurants, cafes, bars 

and public houses - in which food and drink are sold for consumption on its premises.  

 

On Friday, 3 April 2020 at approximately 17:15, Officers from Tameside Council Licensing 

Department and Greater Manchester Police visited Top End Bar, Stamford Street, Ashton. At the 

time of the visit, the front door of the premises was unlocked and appeared to be open for 

business.  

 

Inside the premises at the time were a member of staff and two members of the public. There were 

pint glasses on the bar and an open bottle of cider. Following an interrogation of the CCTV system 

during the period of 15:54 – 17:40 (3/4/20), there is evidence to show that the premises had been 

open and alcohol had been consumed. 

 

By being open, allowing persons to attend the premises and consume alcohol on the premises, this 

put the public at risk of contracting the virus and passing it on to others. 

 

The DPS/PLH and management of the premises have seriously undermined the Licensing 

Objectives of Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Public Safety and Public Nuisance. 

 

Page 22



Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read 

guidance note 3) 

 

 

Page 23



                                                                                                                                  Please tick  yes 

Have you made an application for review relating to the 

premises before 

 

 

 

If yes please state the date of that application Day Month Year 

        
 

 

 

 

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were 

and when you made them 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 24



 

  

                                                                                                                                  Please tick  

yes 
 

 I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities 

and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate, 

as appropriate 

X 

 I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my 

application will be rejected 

X 

       
 

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE 

A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE 

WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION 

TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.   

 

Part 3 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 4) 

 

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read 

guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity. 

 

Signature     M. Robinson 

………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

Date             16 June 2020 

………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

Capacity      Regulatory Services Manager (Licensing) 

………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence 
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6) 

 

Post town 

 

Post Code 

 

Telephone number (if any)   

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address 

(optional)  

 

Notes for Guidance  

 

1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other 

statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area. 

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives. 

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are 

included in the grounds for review if available. 

4. The application form must be signed. 

5. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided 

that they have actual authority to do so. 

6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application. 

Page 25



 

Page 26



This statement, consisting of 4 pages, each signed by me, is true to the best of my knowledge and belief 
and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable for prosecution if I have wilfully 
stated in it anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.   
 
Dated the 12th July 2020 
 
Signed 

EV1ST2 Issue 2 

 

APPENDIX 3 
 

TAMESIDE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

STATEMENT OF WITNESS 
(C.J.Act 1967, s.9; M.C.Act 1980, ss5A(3)(a) and 5B; M.C.Rules 1981, r.70) 

 
 
STATEMENT OF:  Mike Robinson 

AGE OF WITNESS:  Over 18 
 
OCCUPATION OF WITNESS: Regulatory Services Manager  
 

1. I am Mike Robinson, I am a Regulatory Services Manager for Tameside Metropolitan 

Borough Council and I am currently based in the Regulatory Services Department at 

Tame Street in Stalybridge, I have held this position since October 2018 

 

2. My duties include, amongst other things, the administration and regulation of the 

Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) which governs the licensing of premises and their 

authorised activities under the Act.  

 

3.   On Friday 20 March 2020, in response to the serious and imminent threat that the 

spread of Covid-19 posed to public health, the Prime Minister addressed the nation 

and called on pubs, bars and restaurants to close as soon as practicable. He said 

“Following agreement between all four nations of the UK, we are collectively telling 

cafes, pubs, bars and restaurants to close tonight, as soon as they reasonably can 

and not open tomorrow.” 

 
4. On Saturday 21 March 2020 at 14:00hrs, The Health Protection (Coronavirus, 

Business Closure) (England) Regulations 2020, came into force.  

 

Page 27



 
 

 

This statement, consisting of 2 pages, each signed by me, is true to the best of my knowledge and belief 
and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable for prosecution if I have wilfully 
stated in it anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true. 
 
Dated the 12th July 2020 
 
Signed 

EV1ST2 Issue 2 

 

5. On Friday 3 April 2020, I was working with the Police visiting licensed premises across 

Tameside to ensure that they were closed. At approximately 17:15 we were driving 

along Stamford Street when one of the Police Officers noticed that the gate at the front 

of Top End Bar was open. The Police Officer driving the vehicle drove down Old Street 

and then back down Stamford Street so that we could visit. As we approached the 

premises we could see that the gate had been closed, I looked through the window 

and I could see that people were inside.  

 
6. The front door of the premises was unlocked and I walked inside, accompanied by PC 

Martin Thorley, Police Licensing Officer. As I walked into the premises, a man I know 

to be Sanjay Mistry came towards me from behind the bar. He was holding a large 

carrier bag with a quantity of wine bottles. I explained the purpose of our visit and 

asked Mr Mistry what why the premises appeared to be open and why he was carrying 

a bag of wine.  

 
7. Mr Mistry gave two differing accounts for the wine, first he told me that the wine was a 

gift for a tradesman that had been working for him, a few moments later he the said 

that the wine was being sold as an off-sale for a customer waiting outside.  

 
8. As we walked over to the bar, I noticed two glasses and a half-empty bottle of purple 

coloured bulmers fruit cider. One of the glasses contained the rest of the cider, the 

other glass was empty save for the residue of what appeared to be bitter. I asked Mr 

Mistry who had been drinking in the bar and he told me that he had been drinking 

cider. Mr Mistry then approached me and said “Here, smell my breath” and proceeded 

to breathe directly into my face. I felt very uncomfortable by this and I asked Mr Mistry 

to step back and observe social distancing.  

Page 28



 
 

 

This statement, consisting of 2 pages, each signed by me, is true to the best of my knowledge and belief 
and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable for prosecution if I have wilfully 
stated in it anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true. 
 
Dated the 12th July 2020 
 
Signed 

EV1ST2 Issue 2 

 

 
9. At the time of our visit, also present inside the premises were two members of the 

public. One male, approximately 40-45 years of age and wearing a Manchester United 

shirt said that he was paying his rent to Mr Mistry and also delivering a joint of meat. 

The second male was approximately 55-60 years of age and wearing a flat cap. Mr 

Mistry said that he was having a business meeting with this man and denied that he 

had been drinking whilst on the premises.  

 
10. PC Thorley checked the cellar and beer the lines appeared free from beer apart from 

one of the cellar boys which was half full of a beer which looked like bitter.  

 
11. I informed Mr Mistry that I suspected that the premises was open and trading. I 

advised that the premises should be closed in line with The Health Protection 

(Coronavirus, Business Closure) (England) Regulations 2020 and I left the at 

approximately 17:35.  

 
12. On Tuesday 7 April, I arranged to meet the premises licence holder, Anita Mistry 

Jones at the premises in order to collect the CCTV from 3 April which had been 

requested. Sanjay Mistry was also present and his behaviour was aggressive and 

confrontational. Mr Mistry also gave a third explanation for why he was carrying a 

large quantity of wine at the time of my visit on 3 April, he said that he was taking the 

wine home for his girlfriend.  

 
13. On 9 April a Prohibition Notice served by Environmental Health Officer, Beverley 

Hursthouse. 

14. I reviewed the CCTV footage with PC Thorley on 16 April. The footage showed that 

on 3 April, Sanjay Mistry had been drinking with the male that had been wearing a flat 

Page 29



 
 

 

This statement, consisting of 2 pages, each signed by me, is true to the best of my knowledge and belief 
and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable for prosecution if I have wilfully 
stated in it anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true. 
 
Dated the 12th July 2020 
 
Signed 

EV1ST2 Issue 2 

 

cap for at least 1 hour before we arrived. The male appeared to pay for his drinks and 

when we arrived hid his pint of beer underneath the table.  

15. The circumstances outlined above show that the Licensing Objectives of Crime and 

Disorder, Public Safety and Public Nuisance are being undermined by the premises 

continuing to be open and allowing persons to attend and consume alcohol on the 

premises. This facilitates gatherings of people not from the same household, putting 

the public at risk of contracting coronavirus and subsequently passing it on to others.  

Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
Re: Representation from the Population Health Department at Tameside Council regarding 

the review of premise application in regards of Top End Bar, 132-134 Stanford Street 

Central, Ashton-under-Lyne, OL6 6AD 

I, James Mallion on behalf of Public Health in their capacity as a Responsible Authority under the 

Licensing Act 2003 make representation in relation to the premises licence review at (On License) 

Top End Bar, 132-134 Stamford Street Central, Ashton-under-Lyne, OL6 6AD submitted to the 

Licensing Authority on 16 June 2020.  

The representation relates primarily to: the prevention of crime and disorder; public safety; and the 

prevention of public nuisance.  

The Health Protection Regulations which came into effect on 21 March 2020 specifically required 

the closure of restaurants, cafes, bars and public houses. The rationale for this was to reduce the 

overall mixing of people in the community; and to avoid people gathering in enclosed indoor 

spaces where there may be a high risk of transmission of Covid-19, due to the transmission routes 

from respiratory droplets and other contact.  

As a Responsible Authority, we have reviewed the underlying risk posed by the circulation of 

Covid-19 in the wider community during the period in question (late March-early April).  

Firstly the reproduction number (R number) of the virus gives us an overall estimate of the number 

of people each infected person will infect on average. Without any control measures, the R number 

for Covid-19 is estimated to be between 2 and 3. So for every person with the virus, 2 to 3 others 

are infected. In comparison, now that more protective measures are in place, which the majority 

have adhered to, the R number has reduced to an estimated 0.7-1.0 in the North West.  

During the time in question in early April, some of the protective measures that are now in place to 

reduce the risk of further spread, and reduce the R number, were not yet implemented including 

‘covid-safe’ measures in public spaces, the wider use of face coverings (eg. on public transport), 

the national Test & Trace system and the Local Authority Outbreak Management plan. Due to the 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 POPULATION HEALTH 
 
 
Jeanelle De Gruchy 
Director of Population Health 
Population Health 

 
Tameside One, Market Place 
Ashton-under-Lyne, Tameside.  OL6 6BH    
 
www.tameside.gov.uk 
e-mail : James.mallion@tameside.gov.uk 
 
 
Call Centre            0161 342 8355 
 
Doc Ref  
Ask for James Mallion 
Direct Line 0161 342 2328 
Date                      13 July 2020 

   

APPENDIX 5 

Page 51



2 
 

high R number of Covid-19 we know that one infected person could pass this on to others, 

resulting in up to 400 further people being infected after 30 days, from a single case. The range of 

protective measures to limit contact and contain the virus reduce this number substantially, which 

is why it is crucial that measures such as the Health Protection Regulations are adhered to.  

The panel should also note that there is evidence of substantial asymptomatic spread which 

means people who are infected are able to pass the virus on before their symptoms actually start, 

and therefore before they are aware they have it. Evidence from the World Health Organisation 

also suggests that large numbers of small outbreaks of Covid-19 that have been identified have 

been linked to crowded indoor spaces.   

In terms of the actual numbers in Tameside, it is important to note that at the time in question at 

the start of April, the rate of infection was high with much higher levels of Covid-19 circulating in 

our population than we see now. During the 7 days leading up to Friday 3 April 2020, 94 people 

tested positive for Covid-19 in Tameside. This compares to 18 people who tested positive during 

the 7 days leading up to Friday 10 July 2020. It should also be noted that during early April, there 

was a much lower rate of testing taking place than there is now, with only the most severely ill 

patients who were admitted to hospital being routinely tested, so that figure of 94 is likely to only 

represent a small proportion of the actual number of people who were infected in Tameside at the 

time. As the number of tests being done, and the infection rate increased, these numbers 

continued to rise to a high of 178 positive cases in the 7 days up to Friday 22 May 2020.  

Based on this information I think it is appropriate to review the license for these premises as the 

evidence we have indicates that there was a substantial risk of Covid-19 transmission on, and 

leading up to, the date of Friday 3 April 2020. Allowing people to gather and spend time in this 

premise would have potentially increased the risk of transmission of Covid-19.  

 

 
Yours Sincerely, 
 
 

 

 
 
James Mallion 
Public Health Consultant 
 
  

Page 52



3 
 

References 
 
Bryden, A., Roberts, B., McKee, M. and Petticrew, M. (2012) ‘A systematic review of the influence 
on alcohol use of community level availability and marketing of alcohol’, Health and Place, Vol. 18, 
pp.349-357. 
 
Gruenewald, P.J., Freisthler, B. Remer, L., La Scala, E.A. and Treno, A. (2006) ‘Ecological models 
of alcohol outlets and violent assaults: crime potentials and geo-spatial analysis’, Addiction, Vol. 
101, pp.666-677. 
 
Livingston, M., Chikritzhs, T. and Room, R. (2007) ‘Changing the density of alcohol outlets to 
reduce alcohol-related problems’, Drug and Alcohol Review, Vol. 26, pp.557-566 
 
Livingston, M. (2008) ‘A longitudinal analysis of alcohol outlet density and assault’, Alcoholism: 
Clinical and Experimental Research, Vol. 32, pp.1074-1079 
 
Livingston, M. (2011) ‘Alcohol Density and Harm: Comparing the Impacts on Violence and Chronic 
Harms’, Drug and Alcohol Review, Vol. 30, pp.515-523 
 
Pasch, K.E., Hearst, M.O., Nelson, M.C., Forsyth, A. and Lytle, L.A. (2009) ‘Alcohol outlets and 
youth alcohol use: exposure in suburban areas’, Health and Place, Vol. 15, pp.642-646 
 
Pereira, G., Wood, L., Foster, S. and Haggar, F. (2013) ‘Access to alcohol outlets, alcohol 
consumption and mental health’, PLoS, Vol.8, Issue 1. 
 
Richardson, E.A., Shortt, N.K., Pearce, J. and Mitchell, R. (2014) ‘Alcohol-related illness and death 
in Scottish neighbourhoods: Is there a relationship with the number of alcohol outlets?’ Centre for 
Research on Environment, Society and Health, University of Edinburgh and University of Glasgow. 
 
Theall, K.P., Scribner, R., Cohen, D. Blunthenthal, R.N., Schonlau, M. and Lynch, S. (2009) ‘The 
neighbourhood alcohol environment and alcohol-related morbidity’, Alcohol and Alcoholism, Vol. 
44, pp. 491-499. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 6

Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



 

 

Report to:  SPEAKERS PANEL (LIQUOR LICENSING) 

Date: 23 July 2020 

Reporting Officer: Emma Varnam – Assistant Director, Operations & 
Neighbourhoods  

Subject: APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE – 
THE BILLY GOAT, 71 STAMFORD STREET, MOSSLEY, OL5 
0JS 

Report Summary: Members are requested to determine the application 

Recommendations: Having regard to the application and the relevant representations, 
Members are invited to take such steps (if any) as it considers 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. The steps 
available are: 

a) Modify the conditions of the licence 

b) Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence 

c) Remove the designated premises supervisor 

d) Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months 

e) Revoke the licence 

Corporate Plan: Living Well – Improve satisfaction with local community 

Policy Implications: Members are provided with policy guidelines to assist in the 
decision making process. 

Financial Implications: 
(Authorised by the 
statutory Section 151 
Officer & Chief Finance 
Officer) 

There are limited financial implications for the Council, as detailed 
in the report, however, any legal challenge to a policy decision 
may potentially incur costs.  

Legal Implications: 
(Authorised by the 
Borough Solicitor) 

Any decision to revoke/suspend a licence or impose amendments 
or conditions to a licence can be challenged by way of appeal (in 
the first instance) to the local Magistrates Court. 

Risk Management: Failure to give full consideration to the determination of licensing 
issues has the potential to impact on public safety. 

Access to Information: The author of the report is Sharon Smith – Head of Public 
Protection 

Background Information: The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by 
contacting Sharon Smith 

Telephone: 0161 342 4122 

e-mail: sharon.smith@tameside.gov.uk 

 

 

 
 

Page 71

Agenda Item 5



 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Section 51(1) of the Licensing Act 2003 outlines the procedure whereby a responsible 

authority may apply to the Licensing Authority for a review of a premises licence. 
 
1.2 Section 52(3) of the Licensing Act 2003 states that the Authority must, having regard to the 

application and any relevant representations, take such of the steps mentioned in 
subsection (4) (if any) as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. 

 
 
2. REPORT 
 
2.1 The Billy Goat, 71 Stamford Street, Mossley has held a premises licence since the 

inception of the Licensing Act 2003.  The premises licence holder is Victor Bowers and the 
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) is Kathleen O’Neil, who has been in place at the 
premises since 25 March 2013.  A copy of the premises licence is attached at Appendix 1. 

 
2.2 On 20 March 2020, the Prime Minister's announced that all pubs bars, restaurants, and 

other specified premises, must close down in an effort to suppress the coronavirus 
outbreak. 

 
2.3 The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Business Closure) (England) Regulations 2020, came 

into force at 14:00 hours on 21 March 2020.  These Regulations provided the Council with 
the necessary enforcement powers to ensure the closure of the specified premises.  

 
Part 2 of the Regulations state; 
 
 Requirement to close premises and businesses during the emergency 
2.—(1) A person who is responsible for carrying on a business which is listed in Part 1 of 
the Schedule must—  
(a) during the relevant period— 
(i)close any premises, or part of the premises, in which food or drink are sold for 
consumption on those premises, and 
(ii)cease selling food or drink for consumption on its premises;  

 
2.4 At 14:30 hours on 21 March 2020, Greater Manchester Police attended the Billy Goat and 

observed that the premises were open and trading, although the front door of the premises 
was locked, entry could be gained using the back door.  When the Police arrived there were 
approximately 30 customers inside.  

 
2.5 The DPS was told by the Police Officers to get the customers out of the pub and close the 

premises.  However, the CCTV in premises recorded that once the Police Officers had left, 
the DPS began serving again.  The Police returned after 25 minutes and the pub was still 
full of customers.  As a Police car pulled into the car park customers began to leave.  The 
Police Officers entered the pub and ensured that all customers left, however, the family of 
the DPS remained on the premises.  The CCTV records that once the Police left for the 
second time, the DPS began to serve more drinks to those people left on the premises.  

 
2.6 The CCTV shows that the premises was open from 12:08 on 21 March 2020, as customers 

enter the premises via the back door.  The CCTV clearly shows customers paying for drinks 
between 12:08 and 15:00 when the Police leave for the second time.  

 
2.7 It is a condition of the premises licence that CCTV should be provided to a representative of 

a Responsible Authority immediately upon request.  The Police requested CCTV on 3 
separate occasions, before eventually seizing the hard-drive following failure to provide the 
requested footage.  

Page 72



 

 

 
2.8 The Police received a further complaint from a member of the public that the premises were 

open and trading on 25 March 2020.  Following a review of the CCTV footage, there was no 
evidence to suggest that any payment was received for drinks and the according to the 
premises licence holder the alcohol was consumed by occupants of the Billy Goat.  

 
2.9 On 16 June 2020, Mike Robinson, on behalf of the Licensing Authority submitted an 

application to review the premises licence.  The review was served on the grounds that the 
licensing objectives, namely Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Public Safety and 
Prevention of Public Nuisance, had been seriously undermined.  A copy of the application 
is attached at Appendix 2. 

 
2.10 The Licensing Department have received historic complaints regarding disorder and anti-

social behaviour associated with the premises.  Following an incident which occurred on 31 
March 2019 and required Police attendance, representatives from Licensing met with the 
premises licence holder in April 2019. Licensing Officers worked with the premises licence 
holder to agree conditions and reduce the licensable hours to ensure the licensing 
objectives were being promoted.  A minor variation application was received on 10 May 
2019 to attach the agreed conditions.  

 
 
3. REPRESENTATIONS & EVIDENCE SUBMITTED 
 
3.1 In addition to the application to review the premises licence, a supporting statement has 

been received from Mike Robinson on behalf of the Licensing Authority.  This statement is 
attached at Appendix 3. 

 
3.2 A representation has been received from Martin Thorley, Police Licensing Officer on behalf 

of Greater Manchester Police.  This representation is attached at Appendix 4.  
 
3.3 A representation has been received from James Mallion, Consultant Public Health on 

behalf of Public Health.  This representation is attached at Appendix 5. 
 
3.4 A representation has been received from the premises licence holder, Victor Bowers.  This 

representation is attached at Appendix 6.  
 
3.5 The Licensing Department received 24 letters from members of the public in support of the 

premises.  These letters are attached at Appendix 7. 
 
 
4. TAMESIDE MBC STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY/HOME OFFICE GUIDANCE 
 
4.1 In determining any matters under the Licensing Act 2003 the Licensing Authority must have 

due regard to its own Statement of Licensing Policy and Guidance issued by the Home 
Office.  

 
4.2 The current guidance issued by the Home Office under section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003 deals with the powers of a Licensing Authority on the determination of a review, with 
particular attention being drawn to section 11.19, where a Licensing Authority considers 
action under its statutory powers: 
 
11.19  Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers is 
appropriate, it may take any of the following steps: 
• modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new conditions or 
any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by reducing the hours of 
opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular times; 
• exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude 

Page 73



 

 

the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within the 
incidental live and recorded music exemption); 
• remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider that the 
problems are the result of poor management; 
• suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
• revoke the licence. 

 
 
5. CONCLUSION AND OPTIONS FOR THE PANEL 
 
5.1 Panel are requested to consider the evidence and decide what (if any) steps to take as it 

considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  The options available to 
the Panel are set out at the front of the report.  

Page 74



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
THIS LICENCE IS ISSUED BY 

 
 

Tameside MBC 
Licensing Department 

Tame Street Depot 
Tame Street 
Stalybridge 

Tameside 
SK15 1ST 

web: www.tameside.gov.uk 
Tel: 0161 342 4262 

 

Part 1 – Premises Details 

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES,  OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION 

PREMISES The Billy Goat TELEPHONE:  

ADDRESS 
 
Billy Goat Inn, 71 Stamford Street, Mossley, Tameside, OL5 0JS 
 

 
WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES: 

Not applicable 

 

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE: 
 
B 
C 
E 
F 
G 
I 
J 
 

 
 -   Exhibition of films; 
 -   Indoor Sporting Event; 
 -   Performance Of Live Music; 
 -   Playing Of Recorded Music; 
 -   Performance Of Dance; 
 -   Provision of late night refreshment; 
 -   Sale by retail of alcohol; 
 

 
THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES: 

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Times 

 B  -  Exhibition of films (Indoors) 

  Wednesday 11:00  - 01:00 
  Thursday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Sunday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Monday - Tuesday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Friday - Saturday 11:00  - 01:00 
 C  -  Indoor Sporting Event (Indoors) 

  Wednesday 11:00  - 01:00 
  Thursday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Sunday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Monday - Tuesday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Friday - Saturday 11:00  - 01:00 
 E  -  Performance Of Live Music (Indoors) 

  Wednesday 11:00  - 01:00 
  Thursday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Sunday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Monday - Tuesday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Friday - Saturday 11:00  - 01:00 
 F  -  Playing Of Recorded Music (Indoors) 

  Wednesday 11:00  - 01:00 
  Thursday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Sunday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Monday - Tuesday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Friday - Saturday 11:00  - 01:00 
 G  -  Performance Of Dance (Indoors) 

  Wednesday 11:00  - 01:00 

Premises Licence 
Licensing Act 2003 

 PL0427 

 

APPENDIX 1 

Page 75



 

  Thursday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Sunday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Monday - Tuesday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Friday - Saturday 11:00  - 01:00 
 I  -  Provision of late night refreshment (Indoors) 

  Wednesday 23:00  - 01:00 
  Thursday 23:00  - 00:00 
  Sunday 23:00  - 00:00 
  Monday - Tuesday 23:00  - 00:00 
  Friday - Saturday 23:00  - 01:00 
 J  -  Sale by retail of alcohol (Both) 

  Wednesday 11:00  - 12:30 
  Thursday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Sunday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Monday - Tuesday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Friday - Saturday 11:00  - 12:30 
 

 
THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES: 

Description Times 

 

Wednesday 
Thursday 
Sunday 
Friday-Saturday 
Monday-Tuesday 
 

 

11:00 
11:00 
11:00 
11:00 
11:00 

 

 

01:00 
00:30 
00:30 
01:00 
00:30 
 

 
Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and /or off supplies: 
  
Alcohol is supplied for consumption both ON and OFF the Premises OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES: 

 
  

Premises Licence 
Licensing Act 2003 

 PL0427 

 

Page 76



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises 
licence: 

Mr Victor Bowers 
12 Hartshead Avenue, Stalybridge, Tameside, SK15 1BY,  

Tel:  
Email:  

 
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable) 

Mr Victor Bowers 
12 Hartshead Avenue, Stalybridge, Tameside, SK15 1BY,  

Business Reg No:  

 
Name address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence 
authorises the supply of alcohol: 

 
Miss Kathleen O'Neil 
1 The Larches, Mossley, Ashton under Lyne, Lancashire, OL5 9DN 

Tel:  

 
Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises 
supervisor (where the premises authorises for the supply of alcohol): 

 
Licence Number: PA2074 
Licensing Authority Issued by: Tameside  
 
 
SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE ISSUING LICENCE AUTHORITY 

  
  

 Head of Public Protection - Operations & Neighbourhoods   

 
  

Page 77



 

ANNEXES 

Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions 
 
 

1 On & Off Licence Premises  
   

All supplies of alcohol  
   

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence-  
   

(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or  
   

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his personal licence is 
suspended.  

   
2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a personal 
licence.  

   
Exhibition of films  

   
1. Where a premises licence authorises the exhibition of films, the licence must include a condition requiring the 
admission of children to the exhibition of any film to be restricted in accordance with this section.  

   
2. Where the film classification body is specified in the licence, unless subsection (3)(b) applies, admission of children 
must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation by that body.  

   
3. Where:  

   
(a) The film classification body is not specified in the licence, or   

   
(b) The relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence that this subsection applies to the film in 
question; admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that licensing 
authority.  

   
4. In this section "children" means any person aged under 18; and "film classification body" means the person or persons 
designated as the authority under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 (c39) (authority to determine suitability of 
video works for classification).  

   
Door supervision  

   
1. Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more individuals must be at the premises 
to carry out a security activity, each such individual must:  

   
(a) Be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security Industry Act 2001; or  

   
(b) Be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the Act.  

   
2. But nothing in subsection 1 requires such a condition to be imposed:  

   
(a) in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry Act 2001 (c12) 
(premises with premises licences authorising plays or films); or  

   
(b) in respect of premises in relation to:  

   
(i) Any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises being used exclusively by club with 
club premises certificate, under a temporary event notice authorising films or under a gaming licence, or  

   
(ii) Any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed by regulations under that Act.  

   
3. For the purposes of this section:  

   
(a) "security activity" means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule applies, and, which is licensable 
conduct for the purposes of that Act,  

   
(b) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an  occasion) applies as it applies in relation to 

Page 78



 

paragraph 8 of that Schedule.  
   

Age verification policy  
   

1. The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification policy is adopted 
in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.  

   
2. The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the 
premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.  

   
3. The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or such older 
age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 
photograph, date of birth and either—  

   
(a) a holographic mark, or  

         
(b) an ultraviolet feature.  

   
Irresponsible drinks promotions  

   
1. The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any 
irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or 
more of the following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or 
supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises—  

   
(a) Games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage, individuals to-  

   
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the 
cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or  

   
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);  

   
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a 
group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective;  

   
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase and 
consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a 
licensing objective;  

   
(d) Selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises 
which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner.  

   
(e) The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one person into the mouth of another 
(other than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a disability).  

   
2. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where it is 
reasonably available.  

   
Alcoholic drink measures  

   
The responsible person must ensure that—  

   
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic 
drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is 
available to customers in the following measures-  

   
(i) beer or cider: ½ pint;  
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and  
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and  

   
(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to customers on the 
premises; and  
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is 
made aware that these measures are available.  Page 79



 

   
Minimum Cost of Alcohol  

   
A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises for a price which 
is less than the permitted price.  
For the purposes of the condition   
(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;  
(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula-  
P = D + (D x V)  
where-  
(i) P is the permitted price,  
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of the sale or 
supply of the alcohol, and  
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were charged on the 
date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;  
(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence-  
(i) the holder of the premises licence,  
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or  
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;  
(d) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises certificate, any 
member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the 
supply in question; and   
(e) "valued added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994.  
Where the permitted price given by the calculation is not a whole number of pennies, the price given by that calculation 
shall be taken to be the price rounded up to the nearest penny. 

 

Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 
 
 

The Prevention of Crime & Disorder  
   

Alcoholic and other drinks may not be removed from the premises in open containers save for consumption in any area 
provided for that purpose.  

   
CCTV   

   
A tamper-proof digital colour CCTV system must be installed and maintained at the premises to the satisfaction of 
Greater Manchester Police. The system must run and record continuously for 24 hours a day, 7 days per week and 
recorded footage must be stored for a minimum of 28 days. The system must provide a clear head and shoulders view to 
an evidential quality on every entry/exit route and within any other vulnerable areas as identified by Greater Manchester 
Police.   

   
Recorded footage must be provided to a representative of any responsible authority on request. Such footage must be 
provided in an immediately viewable format and must include any software etc. which is required to view the footage. 
Any discs, portable drives or other storage media onto which footage is transferred must be provided by the premises 
and sufficient stock of such storage media must be kept on the premises at all times. A member of staff who is trained to 
operate the system and supply footage must be present at the premises at all times when licensable activities are taking 
place.   

   
The Designated Premises Supervisor must ensure that the CCTV system is checked at least once every week by a 
suitably trained member of staff. This check must include the operation of the cameras, the recording facilities, the 
facilities for providing footage and the accuracy of the time and date. A written record of these checks must be kept, 
including a signature of the person carrying out the check. This written record must be kept on the premises at all times 
and made available to a representative of any responsible authority on request.   

   
Suitable signage informing customers that a CCTV system is in operation must be placed in prominent positions within 
the premises, including information on the Data Protection Act and the Human Rights Act.  

   
Personal Licence Holder to be on Premise at All Times  

   
A Personal Licence Holder must be present at the premises at all times licensable activities, live music, recorded music 
or any other types of entertainment are taking place.   

   
Public Safety  

   
Page 80



 

The maximum occupancy of the building (including staff and performers) will be restricted to 60.  
   

Staff Training  
   

Any staff employed at the premises will receive training by the Designated Premises Supervisor on first appointment and 
at least every three months thereafter. Training will include input in preventing underage sales, sales of alcohol to people 
who are drunk, application of the drugs policy and any other relevant matters. A written record will be kept of all training 
carried out. This record must be kept on the premises and made available for inspection by any responsible persons of 
the Local Authority.  

   
The Designated Premises Supervisor must maintain a written record of all members of staff who are authorized to sell 
alcohol. This record must include a photograph of the relevant members of staff to be kept on the premises at all times 
and be made available to a representative of any responsible authority on request.   

   
Incident Book  

   
An incident book (with the pages numbered sequentially) will be kept on the premises and be made available for 
inspection by responsible authorities. The incident book will be used to record the following:  

   
 i. Any incident of violence or disorder on or immediately outside the premises.  
   
 ii. Any incident involving controlled drugs (supply/possession/influence) on the premises  
   
 iii. Any other crime or criminal activity on the premises  
   
 iv. Any refusal to serve alcohol to persons who are drunk (On sale and off sale premises only  
   
 v. Any refusal to serve alcohol to under 18s or anyone who appears to be under 18  
   
 vi. Any call for police assistance to the premises  
   
 vii. Any ejection from the premises  
   
 viii. Any first aid/other care given to a customer  
   

Drug Policy  
   

The management of the premises will introduce a strict zero tolerance policy in respect of the use and/or supply of illegal 
drugs on the premises. The policy will include checks of the toilet areas every half-hour whilst the premises are open and 
suitable signage will be placed in prominent areas within the premises.  

   
Refusals Book  

   
A refusals book will be kept at the premises and will be used to record all refusals to sell alcohol for any reason. Where 
other age restricted products are sold at the premise, any refusals to sell such items to underage persons or persons 
who appear underage will be recorded. The details to be recorded will be as follows:  

   
 i. Time, day & date of refusal  
   
 ii. Item refused  
   
 iii. Name & address of customer (if given)  
   
 iv. Description of customer  
   
 v. Details of ID offered (if shown)  
   

The refusals book will be made available for inspection by responsible authorities on request.  
   

The Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 
The use of recorded music will be for background purposes in order to avoid the risk of noise nuisance to neighbours 
and others in the vicinity. There will be double glazing to the front of the property to reduce further any noise pollution. 
  

   
Smokers will be able to use the small rear courtyard area and smoking shelter. Staff will regularly patrol the area to Page 81



 

ensure that there is no unreasonable noise or disturbance and notices will be displayed reminding customers to be 
considerate of local neighbours by not behaving in a noisy or otherwise antisocial manner.    

   
  

The protection of children from harm  
   

No films or videos of any description will be shown so that they can be viewed by persons under the age of any 
applicable BBFC/Local Authority Certification.  

   
Challenge 25  

   
The premises will operate a Challenge 25 scheme at the premise in relation to age verification for alcohol sales and 
other age-restricted products. Signs and/or posters will be displayed in prominent positions inside the premise to inform 
customers of this condition. Anyone who appears to be under the age of 25 will not be served without acceptable 
evidence to confirm their age. Acceptable evidence will be a passport, a photo card driving licence or PASS accreditation 
system documentation.   

   
Prevention Of Noise Breakout  

   
Noise generated by regulated entertainment shall be inaudible at the nearest noise sensitive location after 11.00pm
  

   
The beer garden must not be used by customers after the hours of 23:00hrs  

   
   

Non Standard Timings.  
   

To permit the sale of alcohol and such regulated entertainment as authorised hereunder until 02:00hrs on Friday, 
Saturday, Sunday and Monday at bank holiday weekends, Christmas Eve, Boxing Day.  New Year's Eve, 10:00hrs to 
New Year's Day - terminal hour as proposed per written agreement following a representation from responsible authority. 
 

 

Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
 

 
ANNEX 4 – AUTHORISED PLANS 
 

 
 
  

Page 82



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS LICENCE IS ISSUED BY 

 
 

Tameside MBC 
Licensing Department 

Tame Street Depot 
Tame Street 
Stalybridge 

Tameside 
SK15 1ST 

web: www.tameside.gov.uk 
Tel: 0161 342 4262 

 

Part 1 – Premises Details 

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES,  OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION 

PREMISES The Billy Goat TELEPHONE:  

ADDRESS 
 
Billy Goat Inn, 71 Stamford Street, Mossley, Tameside, OL5 0JS 
 

 
WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES: 

Not applicable 

 
LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE: 
 

B 
C 
E 
F 
G 
I 
J 
 

 

 -   Exhibition of films; 
 -   Indoor Sporting Event; 
 -   Performance Of Live Music; 
 -   Playing Of Recorded Music; 
 -   Performance Of Dance; 
 -   Provision of late night refreshment; 
 -   Sale by retail of alcohol; 
 

 
THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES: 

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Times 

 

 B  -  Exhibition of films (Indoors) 

  Wednesday 11:00  - 01:00 
  Thursday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Sunday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Monday - Tuesday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Friday - Saturday 11:00  - 01:00 
 C  -  Indoor Sporting Event (Indoors) 

  Wednesday 11:00  - 01:00 
  Thursday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Sunday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Monday - Tuesday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Friday - Saturday 11:00  - 01:00 
 E  -  Performance Of Live Music (Indoors) 

  Wednesday 11:00  - 01:00 
  Thursday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Sunday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Monday - Tuesday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Friday - Saturday 11:00  - 01:00 
 F  -  Playing Of Recorded Music (Indoors) 

  Wednesday 11:00  - 01:00 
  Thursday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Sunday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Monday - Tuesday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Friday - Saturday 11:00  - 01:00 
 G  -  Performance Of Dance (Indoors) 

  Wednesday 11:00  - 01:00 
  Thursday 11:00  - 00:00 

Premises Licence Summary 
Licensing Act 2003 

 PL0427 

 

Page 83



 

  Sunday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Monday - Tuesday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Friday - Saturday 11:00  - 01:00 
 I  -  Provision of late night refreshment (Indoors) 

  Wednesday 23:00  - 01:00 
  Thursday 23:00  - 00:00 
  Sunday 23:00  - 00:00 
  Monday - Tuesday 23:00  - 00:00 
  Friday - Saturday 23:00  - 01:00 
 J  -  Sale by retail of alcohol (Both) 

  Wednesday 11:00  - 12:30 
  Thursday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Sunday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Monday - Tuesday 11:00  - 00:00 
  Friday - Saturday 11:00  - 12:30 
 

 
THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES: 

Description Times 

 

Wednesday 
Thursday 
Sunday 
Friday-Saturday 
Monday-Tuesday 
 

 

11:00 
11:00 
11:00 
11:00 
11:00 

 

 

01:00 
00:30 
00:30 
01:00 
00:30 
 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and /or off supplies: 

 Alcohol is supplied for consumption both ON and OFF the Premises 

 
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises licence: 

Mr Victor Bowers 
12 Hartshead Avenue, Stalybridge, Tameside, SK15 1BY,  

Tel:  
Email:  

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable): 

Mr Victor Bowers 
12 Hartshead Avenue, Stalybridge, Tameside, SK15 1BY,  

Business Reg No:  

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol: 

 
Miss Kathleen O'Neil 
1 The Larches, Mossley, Ashton under Lyne, Lancashire, OL5 9DN 

Tel:  

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited: 

Access to the premises by children is prohibited  

 
SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE ISSUING LICENCE AUTHORITY 

  
 

 Head of Public Protection - Operations & Neighbourhoods  

 

Page 84



APPENDIX 2 
Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council 

 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the 

Licensing Act 2003 

 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure 

that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. 

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  

 

I Mike Robinson, Regulatory Services Manager (Licensing), Tameside MBC 

  (Insert name of applicant) 

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 under section 87 of the Licensing 

Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below  
 

Part 1 – Premises or club premises details   

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

Billy Goat Inn 

71 Stamford St 

Mossley 

OL5 0JS 

Post town   Mossley Post code (if known)  OL5 OJS 

 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known) 

Mr Victor Bowers 

 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)  

PL0427 

 

 

Part 2 - Applicant details  

 

I am 

 
 
Please tick  yes 

 

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible  

authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A)  

or (B) below) 

  

 

 

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)  X 

 

3) a member of the club to which this application relates      

Page 85



(please complete (A) below) 

 

 
(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable) 

 

Please tick  yes 

 

Mr  Mrs  Miss  Ms  Other title       

 (for example, Rev) 

 

Surname  First names 

             

 
 Please tick  yes 

I am 18 years old or over 

 

 

 

Current postal  

address if  

different from 

premises 

address 

      

 
Post town       Post Code       

 
Daytime contact telephone number       

 
E-mail address 

(optional)  

      

 

 

(B)  DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 

 
Name and address 

      

Telephone number (if any) 

      

E-mail address (optional)  

      

 

Page 86



 

 (C)  DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT 

 

 Name and address 

Mr M Robinson 

Regulatory Services Manager (Licensing) 

Regulatory Services 

Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council 

Tame St Depot  

Tame St 

Stalybridge 

SK15 1ST 

Telephone number (if any) 

0161 342 4262 

E-mail address (optional)  

mike.robinson@tameside.gov.uk 

  

 

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 

 

 Please tick one or more boxes  

1) the prevention of crime and disorder X 

2) public safety X 

3) the prevention of public nuisance X 
4) the protection of children from harm  
 

Page 87



Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2) 

On 20 March 2020, the government via a Prime Ministerial address to the nation and in response 

to the Coronavirus pandemic, gave a direction for all pubs, bars and restaurants to close and not to 

reopen until directed to do so.  

 

The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Business Closure) (England) Regulations 2020, came into 

force on 21 March 2020.  

 

These Regulations require the closure of specified businesses – including restaurants, cafes, bars 

and public houses - in which food and drink are sold for consumption on its premises.  

 

On Saturday 21 March 2020 at approximately 14:30, PC Dench, Neighbourhood Beat Officer for 

Mossley attended the Billy Goat, Stamford Street, Mossley.  

 

Although the front door of the premises was closed he noticed that customers were inside.  

 

The Police Officer reports that there were approximately 30 people on the premises. Upon arrival, 

PC Dench spoke with the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) who was working behind the bar 

and instructed the DPS to close immediately and said that he would return within 30 minutes. 

CCTV shows that during this period, drinks continued to be served to customers during this 

period.  

 

Both the DPS and Premises Licence Holder were aware that the premises should not have been 

open on 21 March 2020, but decided to open the back door of the premises and allow customers 

inside for a pre-arranged gathering. 

 

By being open, allowing persons to attend the premises and consume alcohol on the premises, this 

put the public at risk of contracting the virus and passing it on to others. 

 

The DPS/PLH and management of the premises have seriously undermined the Licensing 

Objectives of Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Public Safety and Public Nuisance. 

 

Page 88



Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read 

guidance note 3) 

 

 

Page 89



                                                                                                                                  Please tick  yes 

Have you made an application for review relating to the 

premises before 

 

 

 

If yes please state the date of that application Day Month Year 

        
 

 

 

 

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were 

and when you made them 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 90



 

  

                                                                                                                                  Please tick yes 

 

 I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities 

and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate, 

as appropriate 

X 

 I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my 

application will be rejected 

X 

       
 

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE 

A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE 

WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION 

TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.   

 

Part 3 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 4) 

 

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read 

guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity. 

 

Signature     M. Robinson 

………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

Date             16 June 2020 

………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

Capacity      Regulatory Services Manager (Licensing) 

………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence 
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6) 

 

Post town 

 

Post Code 

 

Telephone number (if any)   

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address 

(optional)  

 

Notes for Guidance  

 

1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other 

statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area. 

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives. 

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are 

included in the grounds for review if available. 

4. The application form must be signed. 

5. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided 

that they have actual authority to do so. 
6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application. 

 

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



 

 

 
 
Re: Representation from the Population Health Department at Tameside Council regarding 

the review of premise application in regards of Billy Goat Inn, 71 Stamford Street, Mossley, 

OL5 0JS 

I, James Mallion on behalf of Public Health in their capacity as a Responsible Authority under the 

Licensing Act 2003 make representation in relation to the premises licence review at (On License) 

Billy Goat Inn, 71 Stamford St, Mossley, OL5 0JS submitted to the Licensing Authority on 16 June 

2020.  

The representation relates primarily to: the prevention of crime and disorder; public safety; and the 

prevention of public nuisance.  

The Health Protection Regulations which came into effect on 21 March 2020 specifically required 

the closure of restaurants, cafes, bars and public houses. The rationale for this was to reduce the 

overall mixing of people in the community; and to avoid people gathering in enclosed indoor 

spaces where there may be a high risk of transmission of Covid-19, due to the transmission routes 

from respiratory droplets and other contact.  

As a Responsible Authority, we have reviewed the underlying risk posed by the circulation of 

Covid-19 in the wider community during the period in question (late March-early April).  

Firstly the reproduction number (R number) of the virus gives us an overall estimate of the number 

of people each infected person will infect on average. Without any control measures, the R number 

for Covid-19 is estimated to be between 2 and 3. So for every person with the virus, 2 to 3 others 

are infected. In comparison, now that more protective measures are in place, which the majority 

have adhered to, the R number has reduced to an estimated 0.7-1.0 in the North West.  

During the time in question in late March, some of the protective measures that are now in place to 

reduce the risk of further spread, and reduce the R number, were not yet implemented including 

‘covid-safe’ measures in public spaces, the wider use of face coverings (eg. on public transport), 

the national Test & Trace system and the Local Authority Outbreak Management plan. Due to the 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 POPULATION HEALTH 
 
 
Jeanelle De Gruchy 
Director of Population Health 
Population Health 

 
Tameside One, Market Place 
Ashton-under-Lyne, Tameside.  OL6 6BH    
 
www.tameside.gov.uk 
e-mail : James.mallion@tameside.gov.uk 
 
 
Call Centre            0161 342 8355 
 
Doc Ref  
Ask for James Mallion 
Direct Line 0161 342 2328 
Date                      13 July 2020 

   

APPENDIX 5 

Page 129



2 
 

high R number of Covid-19 we know that one infected person could pass this on to others, 

resulting in up to 400 further people being infected after 30 days, from a single case. The range of 

protective measures to reduce contact and contain the virus reduce this number substantially, 

which is why it is crucial that measures such as the Health Protection Regulations are adhered to.  

The panel should also note that there is evidence of substantial asymptomatic spread which 

means people who are infected are able to pass the virus on before their symptoms actually start, 

and therefore before they are aware they have it. Evidence from the World Health Organisation 

also suggests that large numbers of small outbreaks of Covid-19 that have been identified have 

been linked to crowded indoor spaces. In the circumstances around this review, the fact that it was 

reported there were around 30 people on the premises on 21 March 2020 in a relatively small 

space suggests that there would be a large degree of close contact and risk of transmission.  

In terms of the actual numbers in Tameside, it is important to note that at the time in question in 

late-March, the rate of infection was high with much higher levels of Covid-19 circulating in our 

population than we see now. During the 7 days leading up to Friday 27 March 2020, 40 people 

tested positive for Covid-19 in Tameside. This compares to 18 people who tested positive during 

the 7 days leading up to Friday 10 July 2020. It should be noted that during late March, only a 

relatively small number of tests were being conducted in the hospital on those patients who were 

severely ill with Covid-19 symptoms. Therefore this number likely reflects only a small proportion of 

the actual rate of infection at the time. As the number of tests being done, and the infection rate 

increased, these numbers continued to rise to 94 people testing positive in the 7 days up to Friday 

3 April and a peak of 178 people testing positive in the 7 days up to Friday 22 May 2020.  

Based on this information I think it is appropriate to review the license for these premises as the 

evidence we have indicates that there was a substantial risk of Covid-19 transmission on the date 

of Saturday 21 March 2020. Allowing a relatively large number of people to gather and spend time 

in these premises would have potentially increased the risk of transmission of Covid-19.  

 

 

 
Yours Sincerely, 
 
 

 

 
 
James Mallion 
Public Health Consultant 
 
  

Page 130



3 
 

References 
 
Bryden, A., Roberts, B., McKee, M. and Petticrew, M. (2012) ‘A systematic review of the influence 
on alcohol use of community level availability and marketing of alcohol’, Health and Place, Vol. 18, 
pp.349-357. 
 
Gruenewald, P.J., Freisthler, B. Remer, L., La Scala, E.A. and Treno, A. (2006) ‘Ecological models 
of alcohol outlets and violent assaults: crime potentials and geo-spatial analysis’, Addiction, Vol. 
101, pp.666-677. 
 
Livingston, M., Chikritzhs, T. and Room, R. (2007) ‘Changing the density of alcohol outlets to 
reduce alcohol-related problems’, Drug and Alcohol Review, Vol. 26, pp.557-566 
 
Livingston, M. (2008) ‘A longitudinal analysis of alcohol outlet density and assault’, Alcoholism: 
Clinical and Experimental Research, Vol. 32, pp.1074-1079 
 
Livingston, M. (2011) ‘Alcohol Density and Harm: Comparing the Impacts on Violence and Chronic 
Harms’, Drug and Alcohol Review, Vol. 30, pp.515-523 
 
Pasch, K.E., Hearst, M.O., Nelson, M.C., Forsyth, A. and Lytle, L.A. (2009) ‘Alcohol outlets and 
youth alcohol use: exposure in suburban areas’, Health and Place, Vol. 15, pp.642-646 
 
Pereira, G., Wood, L., Foster, S. and Haggar, F. (2013) ‘Access to alcohol outlets, alcohol 
consumption and mental health’, PLoS, Vol.8, Issue 1. 
 
Richardson, E.A., Shortt, N.K., Pearce, J. and Mitchell, R. (2014) ‘Alcohol-related illness and death 
in Scottish neighbourhoods: Is there a relationship with the number of alcohol outlets?’ Centre for 
Research on Environment, Society and Health, University of Edinburgh and University of Glasgow. 
 
Theall, K.P., Scribner, R., Cohen, D. Blunthenthal, R.N., Schonlau, M. and Lynch, S. (2009) ‘The 
neighbourhood alcohol environment and alcohol-related morbidity’, Alcohol and Alcoholism, Vol. 
44, pp. 491-499. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 6

Page 133



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 7

Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	4 APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE – Top End Bar, 132-134 Stamford Street Central, Ashton-under-Lyne  OL6 6AD
	Appendix. 1 for Top End Bar - Premises Licence Review Application
	Appendix. 2 for Top End Bar - Premises Licence Review Application
	Appendix. 3 for Top End Bar - Premises Licence Review Application
	Appendix. 4 for Top End Bar - Premises Licence Review Application
	Appendix. 5 for Top End Bar - Premises Licence Review Application
	Appendix. 6 for Top End Bar - Premises Licence Review Application

	5 APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE - The Billy Goat, 71 Stamford Street, Mossley.  OL5 0JS
	Appendix. 1 for Billy Goat - Premises Licence Review Application
	Appendix. 2 for Billy Goat - Premises Licence Review Application
	Appendix. 3 for Billy Goat - Premises Licence Review Application
	Appendix. 4 for Billy Goat - Premises Licence Review Application
	Appendix. 5 for Billy Goat - Premises Licence Review Application
	Appendix. 6 for Billy Goat - Premises Licence Review Application
	Appendix. 7 for Billy Goat - Premises Licence Review Application


